UNITED NATIONS

Thzrty-ezghth Session
OFFICIAL RECORDS

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL

1358’th meeting

Wednesday, 24 March 1965, |
at 11 a.m.

NEW YORK

CONTENTS
Page

Statement by thé President; oo .A ce s e ae e 17

Agenda item 7:
Review and reappraisal of the Counczl's role

and functions (continted) . . « . v .o vy v ... 17

Agenda item 8:
Question of a meeting of the ad hoc Working
Group on the Question of a Declaration on
International Economic Co-operation, . ... 19

Agenda item 12:
Consideration of the provisional agenda for
the thirty-ninth session and establishrnent
.of dates for opening debate on items ..... 20

Agenda item 10:
Confirmation of members of functional com-
missions of the Council, . . .. ....vv.. 21

President: Mr. Akira MATSUI (Japat).

Present:

Representatives of the following States, members
of the Council: Algeria, Argentina, Austria, Canada,
Chile, Czechoslovakia, Ecuador, France, Gabon, Iraq,
Japan, Luxembourg, Pakistan, Peru, Romania, Union
of Soviet Socialist Republics, United Kingdom of Great
Britain and NorthernIreland, United States of America.

Representatives of the following States, additional
members of the sessional committees: Cameroon,
Denmark, Ghana, India, Iran, Madagascar, Mexico,
United Arab Republic, United Republic of Tanzania.

Observers for the following Member States:
Australia, Byelorussian Soviet Sccialist Republic,
China, Colombia, Cuba, Finland, Greece, Haiti, Ireland,
Israel, Italy, Nepal, New Zealand, Nigeria, Philip-
pines, Spain, Sweden, Trinidad and Tobago, Tunigia,
Turkey.

Observer for the following non-member State:
Switzerland.

Representatives of the following specialized agen-
cies: International Labour Organisation; United
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organiza-
tion; World Health Organization; International Bank

for Reconstruction and Development; International

Monetary Fund,

The representative of the Interrnational Atomic
Energy Agency.

Statement by the President

1. On behalf of the Council, the PRESIDENT con-
gratulated the United States on its latest achievements
in outer space, - .

AGENDA ITEM 7

Review and reappraisal of the Council's role and
functions (conhnued)

2. Mr. S, KHALIL (United Arab Republic) conmdered
that it was too early for any useful discussion of
item 7. On the one hand, the problemwas far too large,
and could not be seriously considered except on the
basis of the voluminous documentation.to be prepared
by the Secretariat, while on the other hand the debate
could not be limited to the mere question of co-ordina-
tion or to the determination of the future relationship
between the Economic andSocial Council and the Trade
and Development Board, It was only logical to wait
until the latter organ had held its first session, Such
was the position of principle of the United Arab
Republic.

3. That being understood, he had some preliminary
remarks to make regarding the points made during the
discussion. Some representatives had expressed the
view that the United Nations Conference on I'rade and
Development (UNCTAD) should be subordinate to the
Economic and Social Council; butwhile it was true that
General Assembly resolution 1995 (XIX) established
UNCTAD as anorgan of the General Assembly and pro-
vided for co-operation between it and the Economic
and Social Council, that did not involve any subordina-
tion; the two organs must evolve side by side, and not
cempete with one another. Moreover, as the repre-
sentative of Canada had pointed out at the 1357th meet~
ing, it would be absurd for the Council to discuss the
t1. le and development needs of the developing coun~
tries when a new and much more broadly-based organ
had been set up for that very purpose. That was yet
another reason not to subordinate UNCTAD to the
Council, since such an act might bring to nothing all
the efforts to achieve greater effectiveness in that
sphere, Finally, the new machinery had not yet been
fully perfected, and its organization, functioning and
arrangements for co-operating with the Council were
yet to be discussed at the next session of both the
Trade and Development Board and the General
Assembly.

4, For those reasons, his delegation considered that
the Council should begin by reviewing its past activi-
ties, with special emphasis on the weak spots, so that
there could be a nseful discussion on how to remedy
them. The General Assembly would then consider the
preliminary reports on the Council's activities, after
which the question of the Council's future role and
functions could be taken up.

5. Mr. BENITES (Ecuador) thought that it would be
useful for the Council to carry out an immediate and
searching evaluation of its activities with a view
to improving its methods of work. The question was
not one of a power struggle between different organs

E/SR.1358



18 Economic and Social Council — Thirty-eighth Session o

of the United Nations, but of better utilization of
their capacities in the interest; »f international co-
operation. The United Nations muiit be dynamie, and
must not become thetoolofap "icybased on the main-
tenance of a balance of power. The dynamic interpre-
tation of the Charter had brought about the emancipation
of many peoples which had only a short time previously
been under colonial rule, The paradox was, however,
that considerable differences in degree of economic
development still existed in an increasingly interde-
pendent world, and the decisions taken at the Geneva
Conference represented a step towards a levelling of
those differences. It was for those reasons that Ecuador
gave its fullest support to the Conference and to the
Trade and Development Board, while hoping that the
interdependence of economic and social issues would
remain the legitimate concern of the Economic and
Social Council. The two organs should be mutually
complementary, but the Council's functions should
nevertheless be reviewed so that it could adapt itself
to the new requirements, That task could not be begun
at the current session, however., He too was of the
opinion that the Secretariat must assemble systematic
documentation regarding the suggestions, decisions
and action of the Economic and Social Council, the
Trade and Development Board and the specialized
agencies if the Council was to have an objective basis
for its discussions at its following session.

6. Mr. HIREMATH (India) felt that it was premature
to consider the present agenda item until the Council
had a clearer idea of how the new body would function.
However, the preliminary exchange of views had served
its purpose; there was even some measure of agree-
ment that the Council should be primarily concerned
with co-ordinating activities and defining policies,
without encroaching on the work of the Trade and
Development Board. But those ideas would have to
be debated at length. It was important, at all events,
that the Secretariat should provide the fullest pos-
sible documentation in good time for the Council's
next session.

7. Mr. DJOUDI (Algeria) said that it was his delega-
tion's wish that the two bodies should supplement
rather than compete with each other, As the role of
the Conference would soon be determined, there was
no need fo hurry the discussion. It would doubtless be
useful tohold consultations with the Trade and Develop-
ment Board. Inthe meantime, the exchange of views had
not been without interest and those views would cer-
tainly be taken into account at the Council's next
session,

8. Mr. DE SEYNES (Under-Secretary for Economic
and Social Affairs) said that he was grateful for the
opportunity to put forward certain ideas on behalf
of the Secretary-General, to whose statements at
the thirty-seventh session of the Council (1320th and
1326th meetings) the present discussion was in part
due. Ideas sometimes took a path in the course of a
debate which their originator couldnothave accurately
foreseen. The Secretariat had the impression that as
far as the reappraisal of the Council's role was con-
cerned, they had prematurely crystallized around
certain points which were not essential. The delimita-
tion of functions between the new and the old machinery,

for example, about which some delegations seemed to -

have serious misgivings, represented in the Secretary-
General's opinion only a very small part of the prob-
lem, and by far the easiesttosolve. The functions laid
down for the Conference on Trade and Development
had bern defined very precisely and questions relating
to areas of interest common to the new and the old
machinery, far from leading to conflicts of compe-
tence, ought to be susceptible of solution quite naturally
in the light of experience. At all events, the General
Assembly was the only body indisputably competent
to solve any conflicts. He hoped that the discussion
would have helped to dispel the idea in the minds of
some delegations that there was a question of rivalry
between two sets of organizations, an idea which had
certainly not been in the Secretary-General's mind
when he had made his proposals to the Council at the
thirty-seventh session, '

9. Yet another impression emerged from the debate,
showing that it would be better not to let ideas
crystallize prematurely. Some statements had implied
that the Council was engaged in working out an over~
all plan to give it a new lease on life so that it could
carry out its task more effectively than in the past.
Since the situation was different for each of the
Council's main functions, the Secretariat considered
that it would be better to examine those functions one
by one, in order to see why the Council had not been
able, in eachparticular case, to discharge its responsi-
bilities under the Charter and what should be done to
enable it to do so. The Soviet Union representative had
mentioned a number of economic and social fields of
vital importance which, although within the purview of
the Council, had perhaps not always received suffi-
cient attention. The situation in each of those fields and
the remedies to be adopted should be considered not
only in a big general debate on structure and organiza-
tion, but also, and even more thoroughly, when prob-
lems of substancewere examined. The debate on struc-
ture and organization, although necessary, shouldnot,
therefore, reach a conclusion until the discussion of
specific problems had made it possible to determine
for each particular field what progress should be made,
what methods should be adopted and what machinery
should be established or improved. The answers
might differ according to the subject.

10. At the 1357th meeting the representative of Iraq
had spoken of the Council's function of formulating
economic and social policies andhad stressed theneed
for the Council to ensure that it had the benefit of all
the expertise it needed for that difficult task. Per-
sonally, he thought that thatwas the key to the problem
and that although the power of policy decision in the
strict sense restedinthe last analysis with the General
Assembly, the Council could play a leading role for the
Assembly by acting as what was sometimes called a
"meditation room", provided that in each particular
field it had available to it the expertise necessary to
distinguish itself by the quality of its views and re-
ports. The problem differed according to the field.
When  the technical expertise had already been or-
ganized and analysed by a specialized agency, the
work of that agency had to be placed in the more
general context of the Council in order to determine
more precisely how it would fit into a general policy
of world development, That was a problem which the
Economic and Social Council had never completely

A R PRI U i e e g A s e s e e g g S R e

bt i e b




1358th meeting — 24 March 1965 ' ‘ 19

solved, In other fields, in which expertise was as-
sembled by functional, i.e., expert, commissions, it
would be necessary for the Council to scrutinize the
reports of those commissions more carefully and not
confine itself to taking note of them and for it to con-
sider how to improve the perforn ance of each com-
mission, if necessary,
performance of the Council itself and of the system
centred on it., There were yet other fields, some of
which were apparently arousing increasing interest,
where the mobilization of expertise had not yet been
organized but where it would be possible to discover
methods of doing so by studying the actual problems
involved.

11. In conclusion, he considered that if the opinion
he had just expressed met with the Council's approval,
the process of reviewing the role and functions of that
body should continue over a fairly longperiod of time,
in eachofits subsidiary bodies, duringtheir considera-
tion of each agenda item, and not exclusively in a
general debate on organization and structure, When the
Secretary-General had made his statement at the
thirty-seventh session of the Council, he had wished to
imbue the Council with a "spirit of reform" which
would inspire it in each of its.actions and in each of
its organs in the years to come, rather than to invite
it to conduct a major debate within a limited period,
Nevertheless, the Secretariat was, of course, at the
Council's disposal to prepare whatever documenta-
tion it might deem necessary.

12. Mrs. WRIGHT (Denmark) asked that the state-
ment by the Under-Secretary for Economic and
Social Affairs should be issued in extenso.

It was so decided.—lf

13. Mr. ARKADYEV (Union of SovietSocialist Repub~
lics) state that the USSR delegation had never thought
that there could be any question of rivalry between
the Council and the United Nations Conference on
Trade and Development, if only because the General
Assembly had very clearly defined the relationship
between the two bodies. He reserved the rightto com-~
ment at the appropriate time on the Council's work
programme in the economic field,

14, Sir Keith UNWIN (United ngdom) thought that it
would be a pity simply to cut short the consideration
of agenda item 7 without any work being accomplished
between the end of the current sessionandthe opening
of the thirty-ninth session. It might be advisable for
the delegations which had formulated definite pro-
posals to propose to the Secretariat a passage relating
to those proposals, to be inserted in the Council's re-
port, and for the Council to request the Secretary-
General to assemble and classify the new elements
that had arisen during the discussions and to consult
with the Governments,

15, Mr. WALDRON-RAMSEY (United Republic of
Tanzania) considered that the summary records of
the meetings gave a sufficiently complete account of
the Council's debates and that it would be contrary
to earlier decisions for the Council to take any
official action on that question before its thirty-ninth

1/ The complete text of the ‘Statement made by Mr. de Seynes was
circulated 'as documenit E/LJ1072,

in order to improve the

session. There was nothing to stop delegations that
wished to do so from consulting directly with the
Secretariat, which could if necessary sound out other
delegations.

16, Mr. QUAO (Ghana) thought on the contrary that
some preparatory work mustbe doneby theSecretariat
if there was to be any useful debate at the thirty-ninth
session, The Council should therefore adopt a text
of some kind presenting the proposals which had
arisen during the current session and should request
the Secretariat to prepare the necessary documents
for the next session.

17. The PRESIDENT suggested that the delegations
which had formulated definite proposals should meet
together informally to prepare a text to be inserted in
the Council's report.

It was so decided,

AGENDA ITEM 8

Question of a meeting of the ad _hoc Working Group
on the Question of a Declaration on International
Economic Co-operation

18. Mr, HASEGANU (Romania) stressed that it was
important to draw up a declaration on the principles
of international economic co-operation. The General
Assembly had been the first to recognize that in its
resolution 1942 (XVIII), The United Nations Conference
on Trade and Development, in its Final Act, Z/pad also
recognized the need for agreement on the principles
of international co-operation and had recommended
continued efforts in that regard, The Council had given
proof of its own interest by establishing the ad hoc
Working Group.

19, The Working Group had been given a very com-
plex task; and to carry out that task successfully, it
had to be representative, The Group had sofar formu~
lated only a very few principles, It would prove con-
siderably more effective if its membership was
sufficiently increased to ensure a better representa-
tion, on a proportional basis, of all the geographic
regions of the world. His delegation considered that
the ressons why the Working Group's session had
been postponed were still valid; nevertheless, it would
not oppose the holding of such a session if the Coungil
so desired. Faithful to the spirit of General Assembly
resolution 1942 (XVIII), his delegation would support
any initiative that would hasten the definition and
adoption of the principles of international economic
co-operation,

20. Mr, BACKES (Austria) considered that the situa~
tion was in no way different from that which had
obtained in August 1964, since the General Assembly
had been unable, at its nineteenth session, to under-
take consideration of the activities of UNCTAD, It
would therefore be logical to postpone consideration
of the question of a meeting of the ad hoc Working
Group until a session of the Council subsequent to
the twentieth session of the General Assembly.

21. Mr. ARKADYEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub-

lics) thought that the Romanian representative had

2/ Proceedings of the United Nations Conference on Trade .and
Development, vol. {, Final Act and Report (United Nanons publicar.lon,
Sales No.: 64.11,B.11). v e




20 Economic and Social Council — Thirty-eighth Session

been right to stress the importance of drawing up a
declaration on international co-operation. Neverthe-
less, the work of the ad hoc Working Group was not
new, and the Council had already taken note of it. The
views of the Romanian and Austrian representatives
could therefore be combined: in the course of informal
discussions on that subject, it had been suggestedthat
account should be taken of a new factor, i.e., the
establishment of UNCTAD, In order that the Confer-
ence should not remain unaware of the work already
done by the ad hoc Working Group in that field, the
Council could send to the Trade and Development
Board the Working Group's report containing the
principles on which agreement had already been
reached; there would then be nothing to prevent the
adoption of the Austrian proposal. In that way prac-
tical action would be taken with regard to the prin-
ciples that had already been drafted.

22. Mr., VIAUD (France) observed that the draft
declaration on international economic co-operation
covered a very wide fieid since its principles related
to economic and social policies as well as trade poli-
cies. His delegation had no objection to the idea that
those principles should be referred to the Trade and
Development Board for its consideration. But that
would be useful only in respect of the principles re-
lating to trade, since the other principles did not
come within the purview of UNCTAD, At the same
time, the mere fact that the Economic and Social
Council drew the attention of the Trade and Develop-
ment Board to the principles of trade policy contained
in the draft declaration could in no way be taken to
signify approval of those principles.

23. With regard to the date on which the Council
should refer those principles tothe Trade and Develop~
ment Board, the most favourable time would be when
the Board examined the recommendation of UNCTAD
on the principles of trade policy and its recommenda~
tion on long-term trade agreements.

24, As regards the other principles whichwerebeing
considered by the ad hocWorking Group, the Economic
and Social Council could resume its examination of
them after the twentieth session of the General
Assembly.

25, The PRESIDENT, taking into account the views
that had been expressed, suggested that the Council
should not discuss the question until after the twentieth
session of the General Assembly. In the meantime,
however, and asthe USSR representative had proposed,
the report of the ad hoc Working Group established
under Council resolution 875 (XXXIII) on the question
of adeclaration oninternational economic co-operation
(E/3725) should be transmitted to the Trade and
Development Board.

L]

It was so decided,

AGENDA ITEM 12

. nsideration of the provisional agenda for the thirty-
.iinth session and establishment of dates for opening
debate on items (E /4010, E/4012, E/L.1071)

26, The PRESIDENT asked whether any delegations
had comments to make on the provisional agenda for
the thirty-ninth session contained in the note by the
Secretary-General (E/4010). He recalled that at the

e ey o

R i A st A oy

Council's 1355th meeting the United Kingdom repre-
sentative had proposed that the question of water de-
salination should be included as an additional item in
the agenda of the thirty-ninth session,

27. Mr. ARKADYEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub-
lics) thought thai the expression "social planning" in
item 18 (b) was not sufficiently precise. He therefore
proposed that it should be replaced by an expression
such as "social programmes and targets", which would
be more in keeping with the wording of operative para-
graph 5 of General Assembly resolution 1916 (XVIII);
the sub-item would then read: "Report on social pro-
grammes and targets for the second hali of the

Development Decade",

28, The PRESIDENT considered that amendment to
be acceptable and said that in the absence of any
formal objection the provisional agenda, as amended
and with the addition of the question of water desalina~-
tion, would be regarded as approved.

It was so decided,

29. The PRESIDENT drew attention to the note by
the Secretary-General on the organization of thework
of the thirty-ninth session (E/L.1071) and invited the
Council to adopt its calendar of work now in order to
enable the Secretariat to go ahead with preparations
for the Council's forthcoming session at Geneva.

30, Mr. PACHACHI (Iraq) requested that item 32en-
titled "Relations with the Organization of Petroleum
Exporting Countries", which was scheduled for dis-
cussion in the fourth week, should be examined by the
Council during the first week and, if possible, im-
mediately after the adoption of the agenda.,

31, Mr, WILLIAMS (United States of America) ex-
pressed the hope that all the necessary documents,
particularly those concerning items to be dealt with
in the first week, would be made available to delega~-
tions well before the start of the thirty-ninth session.

32, Mr, HIREMATH (India) inquired on what date and
in which organ the question of water desalination would
be first taken up.

33. Mr, VIAUD (France) asked whether item 3 entitled
"World economic trends", scheduledtobe examined by
the Council during the second week, would not be
referred, as usual, to the Economic Committee so that
delegations might, if they so desired, prepare and dis-
cuss draft resolutions. Since Iraq had requested that
the question of relations with the Organization of
Petroleum Exporting Countries shouldbeplacedonthe
Council's agenda, the Council might perhaps consider
next the possibility of examining the whole question
of relations with inter-governmental and regional
organizations. He was simply making a suggestion
and not asking for the inclusion of such an item in
the agenda of the thirty-ninth session. Like the United
States representative, he would urge that the docu-
ments needed for the consideration of the various
questions on the agenda should be made available early
so that Governments might have time to study them.,

34, Mr. KITTANI (Secretary of the Council), replying
to the various questions raised, said firstly, thatitem
32 could be taken up during the first week. of the
session. The Secretariat would do everything possible



m——

1358th meeting ~ 24 March 1965 21

to make the documentation available in good time, al-
though difficulties sometimes arose because certain
documents were prepared by outside bodies. The ques-
tion of water desalination would be examined first
by the Economic Committee during the third week, He
stated for the benefit of the French representative
that any agenda item appearing in the document under
consideration could, after a preliminary discussion
in the Council, be referred to one of the Committees
and that item 3 was no exception to that rule,

35. Mr. VIAUD (France) thanked the Secretary for
his statement. However, if the note by the Secretary-
General (E/L.1071) was revised, he would prefer that
the fact that item 3 would be referred to the Economic
Committee should be explicitly mentioned for the in-
formation of the Governments concerned,

36, Mr. ARKADYEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub-
lics), referring to paragraph 4 of that note, said that
it would be preferable not to take a decision, at the
current session, on the establishment of a committee
on questions relating to the Special Fund and the Ex~

panded Programme of Technical Assistance, but to
defer consideration of that matter until the thirty-
ninth session,

37. The PRESIDENT suggested that the Council
should approve the time-table contained in document
E/L.1071, with the amendments and additions that had
been proposed.

It was so decided.

AGENDA ITEM 10

Confirmation of members of functional commissions
of the Council (E/4013 and Add.1)

38. The PRESIDENT suggested that the Council
should confirm Mrs. Jeanne Rousseau, the representa~
tive of Mali, and Miss Nancy Kajumbula, the repre-
sentative of Uganda, as members of the Social
Commission.

It was so decided,

The meeting rose at 1.5 p.m,

Litho in U.N.

10144—-May 1965~2,125





